
 

 

Agenda - Public Accounts and Public Administration 

Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 5, Ty Hywel 

Meeting date: 25 April 2024 

Meeting time: 09.15-11:05

For further information contact: 

Fay Bowen 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddPAPA@senedd.wales

Hybrid 
------ 

(Private pre-meeting)  

(09:00-09:15) 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

(09:15)   

2 Papers to note 

(09:15-09:30)   

2.1 Letter from Estyn to the Public Accounts and Public Administration 

Committee on the Covering Teachers’ Absence inquiry 

 (Pages 1 - 2)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN1-Estyn response to Covering Teachers' Absence 

 

2.2 Letter from the Director General for Economy, Energy and Transport on the 

post-completion monitoring of the Economic Resilience Fund 

 (Pages 3 - 5)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN2-Welsh Government-Economic Resilience Fund 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

2.3 Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care on the independent 

reviews of Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

 (Pages 6 - 7)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN3-Cabinet Secretary for H&SC-Publication of BCUHB 

independent reviews 

 

2.4 Letter from the Permanent Secretary on the Welsh Government's Annual 

Report and Accounts 2022-23 

 (Pages 8 - 25)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN4-Welsh Government-Annual Report and Accounts 

2022-23 

 

2.5 Letter from the Director General for Economy, Treasury and Constitution on 

Gilestone Farm 

 (Pages 26 - 27)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN5-Welsh Government-Gilestone Farm 

3 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

(09:30)   

4 Papers to Note (Private) 

(09:30-09:35)   

4.1 Letter from Amgueddfa Cymru enclosing their legal advice, 28 March 2024 

 (Pages 28 - 30)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN6-Amgueddfa Cymru-Legal Advice 



 

 

4.2 Letter from Amgueddfa Cymru addressing comments made in a letter to the 

Committee from Darwin Gray - 1 March 2024 

 (Pages 31 - 33)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN7-Amgueddfa Cymru - Darwin Gray letter 

 

4.3 Letter from the Auditor General for Wales to the Chief Executive of 

Amgueddfa Cymru - 13 March 2024 

 (Pages 34 - 35)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN8-Auditor General for Wales to Chief Executive of 

Amgueddfa Cymru 

 

5 Draft Report - Scrutiny of Accounts: Amgueddfa Cymru 2021-22 

(09:35-10:05) (Pages 36 - 82)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-P1-Draft Report - Scrutiny of Accounts Amgueddfa Cymru 

2021-22 

6 Audit Wales Report - Supporting Ukrainians in Wales 

(10:05-10:25) (Pages 83 - 86)  

Supporting Documents 

- Audit Wales Report Summary – Supporting Ukrainians in Wales 

- Audit Wales Report - ‘Supporting Ukrainians in Wales’ 

 

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-P2-Audit Wales Report Summary-Supporting Ukrainians in 

Wales 

https://www.audit.wales/publication/supporting-ukrainians-wales


 

 

7 Scoping Paper - Cabinet Manuals and Access Talks 

(10:25-10:45) (Pages 87 - 95)  

Attached Documents:  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-P3-Senedd Research Scoping Paper-Cabinet Manual and 

Access Talks 

8 Welsh Government response on the Annual Report and Accounts 

2022-23 

(10:45-11:05)   

 



Estyn, Llys Angor/Anchor Court, Heol Keen/Keen Road, Caerdydd/Cardiff, CF24 5JW 

Ffôn/Telephone 02920 446446 

ymholiadau@estyn.llyw.cymru • enquiries@estyn.gov.wales 

www.estyn.llyw.cymru • www.estyn.gov.wales 

Mae Estyn yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg a 
Saesneg. Bydd gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn y naill 

iaith neu’r llall yn cael yr un flaenoriaeth. 

Estyn welcomes correspondence in both English 
and Welsh. Correspondence received in either 
language will be given equal priority. 

Mark Isherwood MS  
Chair of the Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 
Senedd Cymru 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff  
CF99 1SN 
Sent by email only  

28 March 2024 

Dear Mark  

Covering Teachers’ Absence 

Thank you for your letter dated 22 February 2024 in relation to evidence about teacher absence. We agree 
that this is an important area of work which has implications for the recruitment and retention of staff in 
schools across Wales.  

During inspection and monitoring activity we discuss teacher absence and its impact on pupils, but we don’t 
collect information about the use of supply teachers. Feedback from discussions with headteachers 
suggests that finding appropriately qualified staff, particularly at short notice, is very challenging. To support 
us with our response to your query we have also spoken to current headteachers who are on secondment 
with Estyn. 

Supply teachers 

During our work we tend not to observe staff on short-term contracts although we will observe supply 
teachers who are more established in a school on a long-term contract. We often hear senior leaders talk 
about the challenges faced in securing good quality supply staff, especially to cover subject specialist and 
Welsh medium teaching in the secondary sector. During our meetings with pupils they will often reference 
where they have supply teachers and the impact this has on their continuity of learning. 

Supply teacher availability 

In some parts of Wales, schools rarely have a problem with booking supply teachers and agencies ring 
daily to check if they need someone. In other areas, there are challenges in finding supply staff, especially  
at short notice and in shortage subjects/Welsh medium contexts. If absences are known about in advance, 
it is usually sufficient to book a week ahead, although occasionally supply staff will cancel arrangements on 
the day. The lack of available supply staff at short notice means that schools feel the agencies have the 
‘upper hand’ and do not always provide someone with the right expertise or skills. As a result, many 
schools tend to cover unforeseen absences internally whenever possible. This is a cheaper option but can 
put pressure on senior staff. Some schools have appointed full-time or part-time teachers or unqualified  

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN1-Estyn-Covering Teachers' Absence

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2.1



                                                                    

 

 

 

 
 
teachers (cover supervisors) who only teach cover lessons and support other teachers or run interventions 
with pupils when not required to cover lessons.  
 
Recruitment and retention incentives for supply teachers 
 
Schools generally don’t provide any recruitment or retention incentives for supply staff. 
 
The previous and new agency framework 
 
Often senior leaders are unaware that the framework has changed or don’t feel it is any different from 
before. 
 
Agency fees 
 
There is a big difference in cost between qualified teachers and cover supervisors sourced from agencies. 
Some schools tend to opt for cover supervisors because they are much cheaper and for short term supply, 
their perception is that the pupil experience is not hugely different. Costs for qualified supply teachers have 
risen but are generally in line with increases in teacher salaries. If the quality of the supply teacher is poor, 
the cost inevitably seems too high. In a few local authorities, schools use an insurance scheme to pay for 
supply staff but this doesn’t cover the full cost. 
 
The suitability and quality of agency staff 
 
There is considerable variation in the quality of agency staff and their expectations when deployed. As 
noted previously, in some areas of Wales, quality isn’t a significant problem, although headteachers report 
that only a few agency staff come into school expecting to teach. In other areas, senior leaders feel that 
supply staff are often of poor quality and unreliable. 
 
The new booking platform and its impact 
 
Senior leader are often unaware of new booking platform or have not made much use of it because of the 
lack of availability of supply teachers in some areas. 
 
The professional development of supply staff 
 
In general, senior leaders are not aware that agency staff receive any professional learning and feel that it’s 
not evident in the quality of their work. If there is a long-term supply (four weeks or more), schools may 
provide aspects of professional learning e.g. completing part of the induction process with an NQT or 
inviting supply staff to attend professional learning sessions with school staff. Senior leaders feel that 
supply agencies provide very little support for supply teachers, including NQTs, and so they feel a 
responsibility to do this themselves. 
 
        Yours sincerely  

 
 
 
 
        Owen Evans 
        His Majesty’s Chief Inspector of  
        Education and Training in Wales 

Pack Page 2



Grŵp yr Economi, Ynni a Thrafnidiaeth 
Economy, Energy and Transport Group 

Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol – Director General 

Parc Cathays/Cathays Park 
Caerdydd/Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ 

Ffôn/Tel: 0300 025 6162 
E-Bost/E-Mail: andrew.slade@gov.wales

Mark Isherwood MS 
Chair   
Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 
Senedd Cymru 
Cardiff Bay  
Cardiff  
CF99 1NA 

10 April 2024 

Dear Chair 

Economic Resilience Fund – Post Completion Monitoring 

Following the Committee’s scrutiny of the Welsh Government’s 2020-21 accounts, I am 
writing to update the Committee on the progress of the post completion monitoring (PCM) 
of grants issued under the Covid-19 Economic Resilience Fund (ERF).  

The Committee will recall the Welsh Government directly provided more than 26k grants 
worth £352m through ERF to protect business and their employees throughout the 
pandemic, as a part of the wider £2.6bn of Covid-19 business support delivered. The ERF 
schemes were delivered on a rolling basis over eight rounds during financial years 
2020/21 and 2021/22. Given the nature of the circumstances in which these grants were 
paid was iterative, our aim was to improve the control framework around the grant award 
process, learning from previous application rounds, as well as post-award checks, either 
through surveys or full post completion monitoring. Annexed to this letter is the position at 
the end of January 2024 in relation to ERF PCM.  

With best wishes. 

Yours sincerely 

Andrew Slade 

Director General, Economy, Energy & Transport 

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN2-Welsh Government-Economic Resilience Fund

Pack Page 3

Agenda Item 2.2



Annex  
 
Welsh Government - ERF PCM activity 

 

• Phases 1 to 8: Survey  

ERF Phase Number of Surveys 
Issued 

Surveys returned 

Phases 1 & 2 Micro 9094 3029 

Phases 1 & 2 SME (under 
£30,000) 

1257 421 

Phase 3 Micro 1205 690 

Phases 4-7 3866 1248 

Phase 8  2484 772 

Total 17,906 6160 

 
Activity considered closed as the % response rate has exceed the target set of 30% and is 
considered completed.  

 

• Phases 1- 8: Post Completion Monitoring  

ERF Phase Number of 
cases 

Number of cases 
closed 

% Complete 

Phases 1& 2 SME (over 
£30,000) 

1270 708 56% 

Phases 1 & 2 Non-SME 52 51 98% 

Phase 3 SME/Non-SME 
To December 
To June 
Total Phase 3  

 
342 
463 
805 

 
260 
85 

345 

 
76% 
18% 
43% 

Phases 4-7 SME/Non-
SME 

432 139 32% 

Phase 8 SME/Non-SME 40 0 0% 

Total 2599 1243 48% 

 

ERF Write-off 
 

To date there are 90 live awards (some will be to the same business) to the value of 
£3,348,718 where the business has entered some form of insolvency. As part of WG 
standard debt management procedures, the Central Debt team submit a proof of debt form 
to the Administrator/Liquidator to lodge the debt. We await to see if there will be any 
dividend distribution to creditors in relation to these cases. 
 
Welsh Government is making provision against these recoveries being pursued as part of 
its’ usual financial reporting processes. 
 
The write offs below are cases where the insolvencies are complete and write off has been 
processed. 
  

Pack Page 4



 

• Phases 1-8: Written Off  

Written off Number of cases Value of Write Off 

Phases 1 & 2 7 £282,050 

Phase 3 3 £134,120 

Phases 4-7  0 £0 

Phase 8  0 £0 

Total 10 £416,170 

 
Therefore, the potential value of write offs in relation to businesses that have entered 
some form of insolvency is 100 awards to the value of £ 3,764,888.  
 
ERF Recoveries 

 

• Phases 1-8: Total Completed Recoveries  

Recoveries   Number of Cases Value of Recovery 

Phases 1 & 2 28 £1,708,884 

Phase 3 35 £481,429 

Phases 4-7  13 £216,743 

Phase 8 0 £0 

Total 76 £2,407,056 

 
 
 

Pack Page 5



Eluned Morgan AS/MS 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Mark Isherwood MS 
Chair 
Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 

SeneddPAPA@senedd.wales 

10 April 2024 

Dear Mark 

I am writing to clarify arrangements for publication of independent reviews commissioned by 
the Welsh Government as part of the special measures intervention at Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board. 

I understand that during his evidence to the Public Accounts and Public Administration 
Committee on 7 March, the chair of the health board commented that it was for Welsh 
Government to decide where and when the independent reviews were to be published. 
This is not the approach agreed with the health board. 

The agreed process for handling reports from each of the Welsh Government 
commissioned reviews is as follows: 

• Director General HSS/CEO NHS Wales to write to health board chief executive to
formally share final report, setting expectations for next steps to be taken by the
health board.

• Health board to schedule the final report to be presented by the reviewer(s) for
discussion at the next development session of the relevant Board Committee.

• Health board to develop draft management response for agreement by the relevant
Board committee at its next public meeting.

• Health board to schedule consideration of final report and management response at
Board meeting. Board papers, including copy of final report and management
response, to be published on the health board’s website in advance of the Board
meeting.

As part of the special measures intervention, the Welsh Government has commissioned 10 
independent reviews relating to a number of key areas including patient safety; vascular 
services; mental health; workforce; planning; and communication and engagement.  All 10 
of these reviews have been completed and the final reports have been formally shared with 
the health board.  The health board has published the final reports and its management 
response for four of these reviews, as part of published papers for its Board meeting in 
November 2023. 

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN3-Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care-Publication of Independent Reviews

Pack Page 6

Agenda Item 2.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Eluned.Morgan@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Eluned.Morgan@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddPAPA@senedd.wales


 

 

I have also published links to these reports in my annual report published on 28 February 
2024: Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board special measures: year 1 progress report 
[HTML] | GOV.WALES 
 
The health board has also commissioned a number of reviews as part of its response to 
special measures and I expect these to be handled in the same way. 
 
Yours sincerely,  

 
Eluned Morgan AS/MS 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol  
Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care 
 
Cc  Carol Shillabeer – Chief Executive, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

Dyfed Edwards - Chair, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

Pack Page 7

https://www.gov.wales/betsi-cadwaladr-university-health-board-special-measures-year-1-progress-report-html
https://www.gov.wales/betsi-cadwaladr-university-health-board-special-measures-year-1-progress-report-html


Dr Andrew Goodall 
Ysgrifennydd Parhaol 
Permanent Secretary 

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 
Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ 

Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 6935 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Mark Isherwood MS  
Chair, Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 
Welsh Parliament 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1SN 

15 April 2024 

Dear Mr Isherwood 

Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee – Welsh Government 

Annual Report and Accounts 2022-23 

Following the Committee scrutiny of the Welsh Government Annual Report and 

Accounts 2022-23 on the 20 March 2024 I welcome the constructive scrutiny of the 

Committee and am pleased to provide responses to the further information you have 

requested as set out below. 

The following annexes respond accordingly to: 

- Annex 1 – An update on the planned improvements to the delegation framework

for decisions relating to the employment of senior civil servants

- Annex 2 – An update on the role of Local Partnerships in relation to consultancy

appointments, or any other activities, undertaken through this organisation. Can

you also confirm whether the resources sourced from Local Partnerships is

included as part of the Welsh Government’s headcount figures in the Accounts?

- Annex 3 – A breakdown of the ordinary staffing headcount would be provided

including a breakdown of those on secondment or contractual arrangements into

the organisation

- Annex 4 - The number of KPIs the Welsh Government has as an organisation

and how, or if, they are weighted as priorities

- Annex 5 - Any claims that have been put through the losses statement in

previous accounts, based on the Committee’s scrutiny of the £1.3m payment in

this relevant set of Accounts.

- Annex 6 – Information relating to the Committee’s Public Appointments inquiry

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN4-Welsh Government-Annual Report and Accounts 2022-23

Pack Page 8

Agenda Item 2.4

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

I trust that this additional information helps the committee in any final reflections and 

that the evidence session we attended in respect of the 2022-23 accounts was helpful. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
Dr Andrew Goodall 

Ysgrifennydd Parhaol/ Permanent Secretary 

Llywodraeth Cymru/ Welsh Government  

 

Pack Page 9

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 1:  

 

An update on the planned improvements to the delegation framework for 

decisions relating to the employment of senior civil servants. 

 

The Welsh Government have strengthened the governance and documented processes 
relating to Senior Civil Service (SCS) workforce decisions. This note provides a 
summary of the arrangements in place at April 2024.  
 
The Welsh Government’s approach to SCS workforce matters is determined by the 
framework Cabinet Office oversees for all UK Government departments and devolved 
administrations. SCS terms and conditions, including the pay remit, are not delegated 
and Cabinet Office lead on Permanent Secretary recruitment, many aspects associated 
with Director General recruitment and support for Director-level talent management.  

 

The framework to support Permanent Secretary employment matters is fully 

operational and includes the provision for an annual report to the Welsh Government 

PRemCom on the application of that framework, with the first report submitted in 

summer 2023. The report for the 2023/24 financial year is due to be tabled for the 

committee shortly and will then be provided to Cabinet Office.  

 
However, as a devolved administration there are some flexibilities and decisions that 
form part of the Welsh Governments organisation-level governance, in order to meet 
business and operational need. It is important that when we take decisions about our 
workforce, those decisions are transparent and supported by strong governance. The 
Welsh Governments’ Workforce Delegations & Accountability Framework sets out 
the responsibilities and accountabilities for the creation, evaluation and recruitment for 
SCS posts and any changes to individual SCS members working patterns.  
 

The People and Remuneration Committee (PRemCom) retains assurance, informing 
decision making for some limited SCS related issues including statutory responsibilities 
around SCS terms and conditions of service, remuneration matters and exceptions to 
policy. The Chairs of ARAC and Remuneration Committee were actively engaged in the 
planning and implementation of improvements to governance and decision making 
relating to the employment of the SCS. Members of the Committee were also involved 
in the reshaping of RemCom as the People and Remuneration Committee, informing 
the terms of reference. 

 

Directors General to take decisions on SCS recruitment and resourcing, empowering 
them to effectively manage their whole workforce and develop the right structures at the 
right time to deliver ministerial priorities. This includes changes to working patterns or 
working hours that can be accommodated within delegated workforce budgets.  

 

A strengthened process on partial retirement has been introduced to support SCS 
colleagues in considering their working arrangements whilst also ensuring business 

Pack Page 10

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

needs are met and fairness is applied. This is a formal, documented and standardised 
process for members of the SCS requesting partial retirement. SCS colleagues are 
required to provide a business case, endorsed by the Director General, for People & 
Remuneration Committee consideration. The business case would include the impact 
on partial retirement on the role, individual and the organisation and the proposed 
mitigations and opportunities. Following an official decision to endorse the request, the 
individual may formally submit a request and engage the Corporate Shared Service 
Centre Pay & Pensions team to action with My CSP (or other pension provider). 

 

Pack Page 11

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 2: 
 

An update on the role of Local Partnerships in relation to consultancy 
appointments, or any other activities, undertaken through this organisation. Can 
you also confirm whether the resources sourced from Local Partnerships is 
included as part of the Welsh Government’s headcount figures in the Accounts? 

 
Background 
 
Local Partnerships (LP) is a public sector consultancy, jointly owned by the Local 
Government Association (50%), HM Treasury (45%) and the Welsh Government (5%), 
as members in a limited liability partnership. 
 
Working solely for public sector organisations, LP serves as a key interface between 
local and central government and provides expert advice and practical resources 
alongside project and programme delivery support, enabling public services to thrive 
and delivering value and efficacy for the public purse. 
 
Local Partnerships has a team of specialist staff with combination of public and private 
sector experience to deliver quality support to the public sector, from supporting and 
accelerating the delivery of major infrastructure, tackling climate challenges through 
waste efficiency and renewable energy propositions, through to wider place-making 
initiatives. 
 
Ownership 
 
LP was originally a 50:50 joint venture between Local Government Association (LGA) 
and HM Treasury (HMT).  Welsh Government took 5% capital at nil cost in January 
2018, which offers no entitlement for distributions nor exposure to calls for additional 
funding.  Under the terms of LP members’ agreement, Welsh Government appoints a 
board member to the LP board from the senior civil service. 
  
Through LGA’s ownership, the Welsh Local Government Association and Welsh Local 
Authorities that are members of LGA benefit from ownership of LP. 
 
Through HMT’s ownership, UK Government Departments benefit from ownership of LP. 
 
Procurement  
 
Local Partnerships benefits from an exemption from public procurement known as the 
Teckal exemption.  This allows public sector organisations that participate in the joint 
control of LP to award contracts to LP without competition, provided certain 
requirements are met. 
 

Pack Page 12

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

To enable Welsh Government to procure services from LP, a framework agreement was 
established in August 2018 to govern the terms of procurement.  Individual work orders 
are put in place for each specific project, setting out: 
 

• service requirements and deliverables 

• services commencement date 

• charges payable and their profiling 

• services completion date 

• key personnel 

• locations from which service is provided 

• contract monitoring procedures 

• management information and meetings. 

Current Projects with Welsh Government 
 
Ynni Cymru 

• establishing Ynni Cymru as an arm’s length energy delivery company to expand 

community-owned renewable energy generation across Wales. 

Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru 

• establishing Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru as a Welsh state developer to accelerate 

development of renewable energy projects on the wider public estate and maximise 

their value. 

Marine Energy Programme 

• progressing management of the Tidal Lagoon Challenge 

• working with Port Talbot and Pembroke Dock and relevant supply-chain 

stakeholders to maximise benefits from the developing floating offshore wind 

industry  

• working with Morlais to support its ongoing sustainable development in facilitating 

deployment of a pipeline of tidal stream devices off Anglesey.  

Energy Service 

• providing strategic engagement service covering the four regions in Wales to all 

public sector bodies, including Health Boards and higher education establishments, 

to develop carbon reduction, energy efficiency, renewable energy and fleet 

decarbonisation projects that contribute to achievement of public sector net-zero 

related targets 

• working alongside other delivery partners, the Carbon Trust and the Energy Savings 

Trust. 

 
 
 
 

Pack Page 13

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Warm Homes Programme 

• acting as contract manager for Warm Homes contracts during period of 

mobilisation, supporting ordered transition between extant and new contracts 

• embedding effective contract management practices and procedures for the new 

contract, for adoption by a permanent contract manager post 

• ensuring appropriate alignment and integration in place between the new contract 

and other energy efficiency and fuel poverty programmes. 

Resource Efficiency and Circular Economy Programme 

• supporting delivery of Extended Producer Responsibility Programme, through 

provision of programme and project management office support 

• providing expert resource to support effective contract management of operational 

Public Private Partnership residual and food waste contracts 

• supporting ambition to achieve one planet resource use and net zero carbon by 

2050, through implementing initiatives to tackle hard to recycle material 

collaboratively across the public sector.  

 
Health and Social Care Climate Adaptation Planning 

• developing a climate adaptation risk assessment and planning approach for the 

Health and Social Care sector in Wales, including a baseline activity review, 

development of an adaptation toolkit with training materials for ongoing use. 

Net Zero Scenario Planner 

• analysing available data for council buildings, street lighting and fleet to estimate 

overall cost by local authority for the council estate and fleet assets to decarbonise 

• developing standardised Scenario Planner for local authorities to explore scenario 

options for reaching net zero, and providing final evidence report. 

Velindre Cancer Centre 

• providing expert support to procurement of new cancer centre, utilising the Mutual 

Investment Model in accordance with requirements. 

Phosphates 

• providing expert support to unblock stalled affordable housing sites, or those at risk 

of stalling, due to regulations around the impact of phosphates in rivers, which can 

be exacerbated by local population increases from new housing development. 

Cwmni Egino 

• undertaking review of achievements and perception by key stakeholders to inform 

future direction. 

Water Quality 

• facilitation workshop, and provision of summary report, to inform the forthcoming 

Programme for Water. 

Pack Page 14

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

The services of Local Partnerships staff are supplied on a consultancy basis under the 
terms of the framework agreement and work order.  There are no secondments into 
Welsh Government.  
 
As Local Partnerships staff provide services as consultants, in line with the disclosure 
requirements of the FReM, they are not included in the Welsh Government staff 
numbers figures reported within the Remuneration Report in the Accounts. 
 

Pack Page 15

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 3: 
 
A breakdown of the ordinary staffing headcount would be provided including a 
breakdown of those on secondment or contractual arrangements into the 
organisation. 
 
As at 31 March 2024, the headcount of Welsh Government was: 
  
  31.3.24 
Permanent 5,757 
Secondment (In) 105 
Loan (In) 56 
Apprentice / Placement 49 
Fixed term 169 
  6,136 
  
It is important to note, this will not align to the Staff Numbers when published in the 
Annual Accounts Remuneration Report for 2023-24. The Staff Numbers for the 
Remuneration Report are required to be prepared to present the average number of 
people employed in the year, and therefore are an average of Full Time Equivalent staff 
over the financial year, it is not the ‘headcount’ which is the number of individuals at a 
point in time, irrespective of whether they are full or part-time employees. 
  
 

Pack Page 16

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 4: 
 
The number of KPIs the Welsh Government has as an organisation and how, or if, 
they are weighted as priorities. 
 
The number of indicators reported on within the WG Performance Framework has 
varied on an annual basis and has been adapted from year-to-year, taking into account 
data availability and changes to the strategic goals of the performance areas.  
 
In 2022-23, 54 indicators were reported on across the Framework. This was a similar 
number to previous years (55 in 2021-22 and 53 in 2020-21), although the exact 
indicators reported on have varied over this time. We plan to move to a quarterly 
balanced scorecard approach to KPI reporting in the 2024-25 financial year, and we 
anticipate that this will lead to a substantial reduction in the number of indicators 
reported on.  
 
ExCo and the Board consider the indicators for each theme both individually and 
collectively, in order to make a comprehensive and rounded assessment of 
performance. The indicators are not currently weighted by priority, and all are 
considered to add to our understanding of Welsh Government’s overall performance. As 
part of the development of the new balanced scorecard approach, we will consider 
whether any weighting of indicators is appropriate.  
 
A subset of indicators is included in the annual accounts, since space does not allow for 
the full set of indicators to be included. There were a number of considerations in 
choosing these indicators for inclusion in the accounts. This included ease of 
interpretation by an external audience, their ability to provide an indication of 
organisational performance, and their suitability for external publication. These 
published indicators are treated equally with unpublished indicators by ExCo and the 
Board when scrutinising Welsh Government’s performance.   
 

Pack Page 17

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 5: 
 
Any claims that have been put through the losses statement in previous 
accounts, based on the Committee’s scrutiny of the £1.3m payment in this 
relevant set of Accounts. 
 
The table below shows the value and number of claims against Welsh Government in 
relation to the Strategic Road Network ownership settled and included within the losses 
and special payments disclosures in the Annual Account for the period 2018-19 to 
2022-23. 
 

Year Total £'000 
Number of 
incidents 

2022-23 1,290 5 

2021-22 1 4 

2020-21 38 5 

2019-20 1 2 

2018-19 7 7 

  1,337 23 

 
 
 

Pack Page 18

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Annex 6: 
 
In relation to the Committee’s Public Appointments inquiry, it was agreed that the 
following information would be provided: 
 
• A full breakdown of the collated figures for Welsh-speakers appointed to 

public appointments since the institution of the relevant Public Appointments 
code. You also agreed to provide information on the first line of each 
successful applicants post code. 

• A full list of both the regulated and unregulated bodies subject to the public 
appointment code. 

• A full list of the bodies that are not subject to the code and an explanation 
about why this is the case. 

• An understanding about why these arrangements are codified in an Order of 
Council and your understanding as to whether there is legal competence for it 
to be done in this way. 

• Whether Senedd public appointments are dealt with in line with the public 
appointments code – is there a memorandum of understanding between the 
two organisations. 

 
 
Location and Welsh Language Skills of Appointees to Public Appointments 
 
The Governance Code on Public Appointments was published in 2016. The Appoint 
recruitment system did not capture data on Welsh language and location until 1 April 
2019 and so no data is available prior to that date. The Appoint data provided after 1 
April 2019 was not mandated by the system and so the analysis below is limited to the 
data which was voluntarily provided at that time.  
 
Cais captures information more consistently that which was collected by Appoint as 
some fields are now mandatory. Data on Welsh speaking skills was not collected at all 
on Appoint. It is mandatory on Cais to provide data on understanding the Welsh 
language, Welsh speaking skills and on location. 
 
Public Appointments by Location: 
 
The table below shows the number and proportion of appointees by postcode area. This 
data was collated from both the Cais and Appoint recruitment systems. Where less than 
10 appointees were based within a postcode area, they were combined with other 
postcodes within the same region, in order to protect anonymity. 
 
Data included in the analysis below:  

• Appoint from 1 April 2019 – 31 May 2023  

• Cais (the replacement for Appoint) from 1 June 2023 - 27 March 2024 

• This does not represent all appointments as there is only limited information 
before May 2023 

Pack Page 19

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

 

Postcode area 
Number of 
appointees 

Percentage of 
appointees 

South East Wales 

CF 59 32% 

NP 20 11% 

South West Wales 

SA 32 17% 

Mid Wales 

SY*/LD 18 10% 

North Wales 

LL/CH* 29 16% 

Outside Wales 

All other postcodes^ 26 14% 

Grand Total 186 100% 
*Please note that these postcode areas straddle the Wales/England border. Exploration of the specific postcodes 
suggests that almost all these appointees are based in Wales. 
^Most other postcodes were based in England, with a small number in Scotland.  

 

Public Appointments by Welsh Language Skills: 
 
Understanding of Welsh 
 
The table below shows the number and proportion of appointees by skill level in 
understanding Welsh. This data was collated from both the Cais and Appoint 
recruitment systems. Since some specific skill levels have small counts of staff, data 
has been combined into three categories: those with no skills, those with basic or 
intermediate skills and those with advanced skills. The specific skill levels within each 
category are listed below the table. 
 
Welsh Language Skill Level Number of 

appointees 
Percentage of 
appointees 

No skills 57  31% 

Basic/Intermediate Skills* 68 37% 

Advanced Skills^ 61 33% 

Grand Total 186 100% 
*This category includes appointees at three skill levels: (i) those who can understand parts of a basic conversation, 
(ii) those who can understand basic conversations about everyday topics or (iii) those who can understand routine 
work-related conversations. 
^This category includes appointees who can understand most or all work-related conversations. 

 
Welsh Speaking Skills 
 
The table below shows the number and proportion of appointees by skill level in 
speaking Welsh. This data is only available on the Cais recruitment system, and 
therefore can only be reported for around half of appointees. Since some specific skill 
levels have small counts of staff, data has been combined into three categories: those 

Pack Page 20

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

with no skills, those with basic or intermediate skills and those with advanced skills. The 
specific skill levels within each category are listed below the table. 
 
Welsh Language Skill Level Number of 

appointees 
Percentage of 
appointees 

No skills 31 42% 

Basic/Intermediate Skills* 15 20% 

Advanced Skills^ 28 38% 

Grand Total 74 100% 

*This category includes appointees at three skill levels: (i) those who can hold a basic conversation in Welsh, (ii) 

those who can hold simple work-related conversations or (iii) those who can converse in some work-related 
conversations. 
^This category includes appointees who can converse in most work-related conversations or consider themselves 
fluent. 

 
In his letter of 15 March, Tim Moss undertook to provide an analysis of socio-economic 
data for public appointments after we have a full year under the new recruitment 
system.  However, we will be able to provide the Committee with an initial analysis by 
the end of April.  
 
Regulated public bodies which are listed on the Public Appointments Order in 
Council 2023 and subject to the public appointment code:  
 
Regulated bodies: 
 
Advisory Panel to the Welsh Language Commissioner  
Agricultural Advisory Panel for Wales  
All Wales Medicines Strategy Group  
All Wales Programme Monitoring Committee for the European Structural Funds  
Amgueddfa Cymru - Museum of Wales  
Aneurin Bevan University Local Health Board  
Animal Health and Welfare Framework Group  
Arts Council of Wales  
Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Arfordir Penfro/Pembrokeshire Coast National Park 
Authority  
Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Bannau Brycheiniog / Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority  
Awdurdod Parc Cenedlaethol Eryri /Snowdonia National Park Authority 
Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board  
Board of Community Health Councils  
Cardiff & Vale University Health Board  
Career Choices Dewis Gyrfa Ltd  
Children’s Commissioner for Wales  
Commission for Tertiary Education and Research  
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Local Health Board  
Design Commission for Wales  
Digital Health and Care Wales 
Education & Skills Ministerial Advisory Group  

Pack Page 21

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Education Workforce Council  
Future Generations Commissioner  
Health Education and Improvement Wales  
Higher Education Funding Council for Wales  
Hybu Cig Cymru  
Hywel Dda University Health Board  
Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales  
Life Sciences Hub Wales Board  
Llais Citizen Voice Body for Health and Social Care, Wales 
Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales  
National Academy for Educational Leadership  
National Adviser for Violence against Women and other forms of Gender-based 
Violence, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  
National Library of Wales  
Natural Resources Wales  
Older People's Commissioner for Wales 
Powys Teaching Health Board  
Public Health Wales NHS Trust  
Qualifications Wales  
Royal Commission on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Wales  
Social Care Wales  
Sport Wales  
Swansea Bay University Local Health Board  
Velindre National Health Services Trust  
Welsh Ambulance Services National Health Service Trust  
Welsh Industrial Development Advisory Board  
Welsh Language Commissioner  
Welsh Revenue Authority 
 
Unregulated public bodies which voluntarily adhere to all or some parts of the Code1: 
 
Adnodd/Bilingual Resources 
Agriculture and Horticulture Development Board 
Audit Wales 
Building regulations Advisory Committee 
Clean Air Advisory Panel 
Consumer Council for Water 
Continuing NHS Healthcare Review Panels 
Control Agricultural Pollution Regulations – Independent chair 
Deputy Interim Environmental Protection Officer for Wales 
Digital Public Services Board 
Economy and Transport North Wales Ministerial Advisory Group 

 

1 Control Agricultural Pollution Regulations – Independent chair and NHS Joint 
Commissioning Committee are new additions to this list which is why they were not 
included on the list provided with the response to WQ91304 

Pack Page 22

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

Emergency Ambulance Services Committee 
Enterprise Zone Advisory Boards 
Environmental Government Assessor 
Eradication Programme Board 
Firefighters Pension Advisory Board 
Flood and Coastal Erosion Committee 
Food and Drink Industry Wales 
Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone Advisory Board 
Health and Social Services National Expert Group 
Human Tissue Authority 
Independent Adjudicators 
Independent Appeals for Rural Payments and Grants 
Independent Assurance Panel for Housing Regulations 
Independent Pay Review Panel Wales 
Industry Wales trading as Sector Development Wales Partnership 
Interim Environment Protection Office for Wales 
Livestock Identification Advisory Group 
Ministerial Advisory Board 
More Than Just Words 
National Independent Safeguarding Board  
National Infrastructure Commission for Wales 
NHS Healthcare Review Panels 
NHS Joint Commissioning Committee 
OfCOM Board Wales 
RED - Renewable Energy 
Regulatory Board Wales 
Road Infrastructure Review Group 
Ser Cymru 
Social Partnership Council 
TB Eradication Programme Board 
TB Technical Advisory Group 
Valuation Tribunal for Wales 
Wales Animal Health and Welfare Framework Group 
Wales Coasts and Seas Partnership 
Wales Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) 
Wales Marine and Fisheries Action Group 
Wales Food Advisory Committee (FSA in Wales) 
Welsh Government – CADW 
Welsh Government – board appointments 
Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee 
Welsh Language Partnership Council 
WGC Holdco 
Youth Work Strategy Implementation Board 
 
Welsh Government companies and arm’s length bodies with corporate status that are 
neither included in the Order in Council or are not known to follow the Code of Practice*: 

Pack Page 23

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

 
Centre for Digital Public Services Ltd 
Cwmni Egino Ltd 
Design Commission for Wales Ltd 
Development Bank for Wales plc 
GCRE Ltd (Global Centre for Rail Excellence) 
International Business Wales 
St Athan (Stadium Site) Ltd 
Transport for Wales Ltd 
 
*This excludes NHS bodies and committees, ad hoc advisory committees, and tribunals 
(which are part of the justice system).  
 
 
An explanation about why some Welsh public bodies are not subject to the Governance 
Code: 
 
Unregulated public bodies (i.e. those which are not included in Orders in Council) are  
not subject to the Governance Code on Public Appointments. I have listed those which 
voluntarily follow all or part of the Code when making public appointments. Other 
unregulated public bodies may decide not to follow all or part of the Code. I have 
provided a list of these.  
 
An understanding about why these arrangements are codified in an Order of Council 
and your understanding as to whether there is legal competence for it to be done in this 
way: 
 
Orders in Council make provision for the Commissioner for Public Appointments to 
monitor Department’s procedures when making public appointments. Orders include a 
list of all the bodies that are regulated by the Commissioner. They are regularly updated 
(the latest was issued in November 2023 and previous Public Appointments Orders in 
Council were made in July 2023 and November 2019). The decision to add a body or 
office to the Public Appointments Order in Council, to make appointments to it 
regulated, is a matter for the appointing Secretary of State or Minister. While the 
Cabinet Office provides general guidance to Departments on the issues to consider 
when deciding whether a body or office should be added to the Order in Council, it 
considers ministers are best placed to determine which of the appointments that they 
are responsible for making should be regulated, along with which should be considered 
significant appointments, taking account of departmental policies and priorities. 
 

There are usually reasons for roles/bodies not to be regulated, most notably where 
there are other formal, usually statutory, processes which govern their appointment 
(which may not allow an appointment to mirror the practices set out in the Governance 
Code), where the volume and local nature of the roles makes ministerial involvement 
impractical or where a particular degree of independence from government is required. 
 

Pack Page 24

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


 

 

 
Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 

Caerdydd ● Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ  

 
Ffôn  ● Tel 0300 025 3289 
PS.PermanentSecretary@gov.wales 
Gwefan ● Website: www.gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  Dilynwch y ddolen i gael arweiniad ar sut fyddwn yn trin a defnyddio'ch data, yn unol â'r Rheoliadau Diogelu Data 
Cyffredinol.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding in 
Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. Please follow the link for guidance on how we will handle & use your data, in accordance with the 
General Data Protection Regulations.  https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en 

 
Whether Senedd public appointments are dealt with in line with the public appointments 
code – is there a memorandum of understanding between the two organisations? 
 
The Senedd is responsible for making its own public appointments but none of these 
are listed in Orders in Council and therefore are not regulated by the Commissioner for 
Public Appointments. The Senedd has a responsibility to scrutinise significant 
appointments made by Welsh Government which they do by holding pre-appointment 
hearings with successful candidates. There is no Memorandum of Understanding in 
place. 

Pack Page 25

http://www.gov.wales/
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?skip=1&lang=cy
https://gov.wales/about/welsh-government-privacy-notice/?lang=en


Grwp yr Economi, y Trysorlys a’r Cyfansoddiad 
Economy, Treasury and Constitution Group 

Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol – Director General 

Parc Cathays/Cathays Park 
Caerdydd/Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ 

Ffôn/Tel: 0300 025 6162 
E-Bost/E-Mail: andrew.slade@gov.wales

Mark Isherwood MS 
Chair   
Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee 
Senedd Cymru 
Cardiff Bay  
Cardiff  
CF99 1NA 

21 March 2024 

Dear Chair 

GILESTONE FARM 

Thank you for your letter of 26 February seeking clarification on two additional points 
following the Committee’s consideration of my letter of 2 February about Gilestone Farm. 
My responses to the Committee’s questions are set out below. 

Can you confirm the Welsh Government has sought a new valuation of the land, following 
the discovery of the ospreys on site? Previously, the Committee has been told the farm 
had a market value of £4.35m. If a new valuation is available, can this valuation be shared 
with the Committee? If no updated valuation has been sought, why not? 

An external valuation of Gilestone Farm was undertaken in July 2023, prior to our being 
informed of the arrival of the ospreys. At that time, the property was valued at £4.25m, 
which is the price Welsh Government paid for the asset. The birds’ arrival makes the site a 
unique proposition, and we have since received and implemented the osprey conservation 
plan. Looked at typically, a firm revised valuation will be difficult to obtain; the uniqueness 
of the site and situation means there is a lack of comparable and/or empirical evidence to 
substantiate a change in value either upwards or downwards. A current, in-principle 
valuation of the asset will nevertheless be undertaken by Alder King as part of the Annual 
Valuation of all Welsh Government assets. That valuation should be available by early 
May, and I will update you and the Committee as to the findings.  

Can you confirm the income generated from the Farm Business Tenancy currently in place 
for the site? 

The total income generated from the previous Farm Business Tenancy to November 2023 
was £37,753. A new one-year Farm Business Tenancy has been agreed with the existing 
tenant for a lease term up to November 2024. The first invoice for £16,300 of rent under 

PAPAC(06)-06-24-PTN5-Welsh Government-Gilestone Farm

Pack Page 26

Agenda Item 2.5



the new tenancy will be issued in May, and the second tranche of £16,300 will be rendered 
in October. Any profit rent due will also be rendered in May and October respectively.  
 
With best wishes. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 

Andrew Slade 

Director General, Economy, Treasury & Constitution 

Pack Page 27



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 28

Agenda Item 4.1 By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 31

Agenda Item 4.2By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 34

Agenda Item 4.3 By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 36

Agenda Item 5 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 83

Agenda Item 6By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 87

Agenda Item 7By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2.1 Letter from Estyn to the Public Accounts and Public Administration Committee on the Covering Teachers’ Absence inquiry
	2.2 Letter from the Director General for Economy, Energy and Transport on the post-completion monitoring of the Economic Resilience Fund
	2.3 Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Care on the independent reviews of Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board
	2.4 Letter from the Permanent Secretary on the Welsh Government's Annual Report and Accounts 2022-23
	2.5 Letter from the Director General for Economy, Treasury and Constitution on Gilestone Farm
	4.1 Letter from Amgueddfa Cymru enclosing their legal advice, 28 March 2024
	4.2 Letter from Amgueddfa Cymru addressing comments made in a letter to the Committee from Darwin Gray - 1 March 2024
	4.3 Letter from the Auditor General for Wales to the Chief Executive of Amgueddfa Cymru - 13 March 2024
	5 Draft Report - Scrutiny of Accounts: Amgueddfa Cymru 2021-22
	6 Audit Wales Report - Supporting Ukrainians in Wales
	7 Scoping Paper - Cabinet Manuals and Access Talks



